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N. K. DAGA&ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

1011 Ahiritolo street.
Kolkoto - 700005.

Mobile - 09830329820
E-moil : dogonilesh@Yohoo.co.in

INDE,PT,I\D ENT AT]I)ITORS'RE,PORT

To the Members of ORCHID SECURITIES LIMITED

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited accompanying Standalone financial staternents of ORCHID SECURITIES LIMITED ("the C'ompatt1")'

which comprise of the Balance Sheet as at March 31,2020,the statement of Profit and Loss and statement of cash Flow's 1or

the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements. including a summary of significant accottttting policies and other

explanatory information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone

financial statements give the information required by The companies Act,2013 ("The Act") in the manner so required arrcl

give atrue and fairview in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of aff'airs o1'the

bo1npuny as at March 31,2020, Loss and its casl-r flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our ar-rdit of the Standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,20l3. OLrr responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the

Auditor,s Responsibilities for the Audit of tlre Standalone Financial Statements section olour repofi. We are independent of-

the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together rvith

the independent requirement that are relevant to our audit of the Stanclalone financial statements under the provisions of the

Cornpariies Act,20l3 and the rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordarlce

withihese requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on Standalotte financial statements.

Kev Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professiirnal judgment, were. of most significance in our ar"rdit of the

Standalole finapcial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our ar-rdit of the

financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon. and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.

Managem ent's Resnonsibilitv for the F inancial tements

The Company,s Board of Directors is responsible for the rratters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act.20l3 ("the

Act,,) witL respect to the preparation of ihese Standalone that give a true and fair view of the financial position' financial

perfonnance and cash flows'of the Company in accorclance with the accot-tt-tting principles generally accepted in lrrclia.

includingthe Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. Tlris responsibility also includes maintettatrce ol'

adequate-accounting records in accordance with the provisions of tlre Act for safegLrarding of the assets of theCotupanl atttl

for preveltilg and detecting frauds and other irregLrlarities: selection and application of appropriate implernetltatiott atttl

maintenance of accountingf policies; making .judgrnents and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design-

implementatio11 and maintJnance of adeqLrate iuternal fiuancial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records. relevaut to the preparation and presentatiott of the financial statemetll

that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatemetlt. lvhether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, ltsible ftrr assessing the Company's ability to cotttinue as a golllg

concern, disclosit-tg, as applicable, matters arid using the going concern basis of accounting Llllless

Management either irrtends to liqr"ridate operations, or has no realistie alternative but to do so

Board of Directors are also responsible 's f iltancial reporting process.



Auditrr,s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

our objectives are to obtain reasonable assllrance abor-rt whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free fiollr

material misstatement, whether due to fr.aud or error. ancl to issue an auditor's report that includes our opitlion' Reasottablc

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a gllarautee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will allvays

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstaten-rerrts can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if'

individually or in the aggregate, they could reasorrably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

basis of tl-rese Standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise protbssional judgrlent and maintairr prof-essional skepticisrrl

through- out the audit. We also:

a) Identify and assess the risks of material nrisstatement of the Stanclalone financial statements, whether due to fl"auclor

error, design and perform audit procedures respousive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis foiour opinion. ihe risk of not detectirrg a material misstatement resulting from fi'auc]

is higher than for one resulting from error, as fiaud rlay involve collusion, forgery. intentional otlissiotrs"

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control'

b) obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are

appropriate i1 the circumstances. Uncler sectiorr 143(3Xi) of the Companies Act,2013, we are also responsible fbr

expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the

operating effectiveness of such cotrtroIs.

c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accouuting policies used ancl tlre reasonableness of accountitlg estimates ancl relatetl

disclosures made bY Management.

d) Conclude on the appropriateness of Mauagement's Lrse of the going concern basis of accounting arrd, based on lhc

ar-rdit evidence obtained. whether a rnaterial r-rnceftainty exists related to events or conditions that mzlv cilsl

significa,t doubt on the CompanSr's ability to continue as a going concern. If u'e cortcltrde that a material uncertaitttl'

exists, we are required to draw altention i,., o'.,, auclitor's report to the related disclosLrres in the Standalotre tlnancial

statements or, if such disclosures are inaclequate. to modily' our opirtion. Our conclusiot]s are based on tlte aLtclil

evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's repofl. However, future events or cottditiotls Inay cattsc thr:

Company to cease to continue as a going collcerll.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, stnrcture and content of the Standalone financial statements. including thc

disclosures, and whether the Standalone financial statements represent the urrderlying transactions and evellts itr a

lnanner that achieves fair presentatiotl.

we communicate with those charged with governauce regarcling, arnoug other matters. the planned scope and tirning of the

audit a,d significant audit findin!s. includ"ing any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during orrt'

audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement tlrat we have complied with relcvant ethical .equit"'."t:'it'

regarding independenc., ur.,Jto communicate with them all relationships and other matters that rnay reasonably be tltottght to

bear on our independence, and where applicable, related saf'egLrards.

From the matters corn1nunicated with those chargeci with goventAuce, we determine those matters that were of tno't

sig,ificance in the audit of the Standalone finaucial statements of the current perioc'l attd are therefore the ltey audit tltattcrs.

We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure abotrt tlre nlatter ol'

when, in extremely rare circumstances, rve determine that a matter shoLrld not be communicated in our report becattse thc

adverse corlseqlrences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits o1' sttcl.r

'{MffrAs +
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Renort on Other al and Resu latorY Req uirements

1. As required by the companies (Auditor's Report) orcler,20l6 issued by the central Government of India in terms ol

sub-sectior-r (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure (oAnnexure A') a statement on the tlatters specilied

in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the infbrrnation ancl explanations which to the best of our knowledge and beliel'

were necessary for the purpose of our aLrdit'

b. [n our opinion proper books of accor-u-rt as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears frorrt

our examination of those books.

c. The Balance Sheet. Statement of profit and Loss and the cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are ilt

agreement with the books of accottt-tt.

d. ln ouropinion,the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section li3

of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the conipanies (AccoLrnts) Rules,2014'

e. on the basis of written representations received from the Directors as on March 31,2020, and taken on record b1'thc:

Board of Directors, lone of the Directors is disqualified as on March 31,2020, frorn being appointed as a Director

in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company ancl tlte

operatingeffectiverressofsuclrcontrols,refertoourseparatereportin..@,,

g. with respect to the other matters to be irrcluded in tlre Auditor's Report in accordance with RLrle I I o1' the

Compa^ies (Audit and Auditors), 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our inforrnation arrd according 1o tlre

explanations given to us;

i. the Cornpaly does not have any pencling litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. In our opinion and as per the infornratio-n and explarratiorrs provides to Lls, the Company has not entered into anl

long-term contracts inclucling derivative contracts, requiring provision r-rnder applicable laws or accotttrtillg

standards, for rnaterial foreseeable losses. and

iii. there were r1o amounts which were required to be transf'errecl to the Investor Edr-rcation and Protection FLrnd br

the ComPanY.

FoTNKDAGA&ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No .324493E

(NILESH KUMAR DAGA)
Proprietor
N/lem bersh ip No. 059304
U D I N : 20059304AAAAA Q8766

Place : Kolkata
Date : 30/07 12024
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.OANNEXURE A" TO AUDITORS'REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph l unde, ,\"!s on otrrer Legar and Reg,ratory Requirements' in the Inclepe.dent Audit.rs'

Report of even date to tire members of ORCHTD SECURITTBs r.ffiTED on the finarrcial statetnents for the year e ttcleti

3 1/03 DAZAI

lll

(a) The company has mai,tained proper records showing fult particulars inclr-rding quarrtitative details and sittratio, o['

its fixed assets'

(b) These Fixed assets have been physically verified by the Ma,agement at reasorrable i,tervals a.d accordi'g to the

info,nation and explanations given to tts, ,ro material discrepa,cies were noticed on such verificatiotl'

(c) The Company does not lrold any Immovable property during the year'

According to the i,fbrmation and explanations give, to ,s , The Stock for trade has been physically verified by the

Management d'ri'g the year atrd tro material dislrepancies were noticed orr physical verification'

As i.formed to us, the cornpany has not grantecl any loans, securecl or unsecured, to companies, firms or other partics

covered inthe register maintained under section 189 of tlie Compa.ies Act. Accordingly, the sub-clar'rses (a) to (c) o!'

clause (iii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company'

In our opinion and accordi,g to the i,forrnatio' ancl explanations given to tts. the company has complied ivith thc

provisions of sectior] 185 anJ186 of the Act, with respectto the loans atrd investments made'

In our opinion and according to tlie infbrmation and explanations given to|",-t,-the company has not accepted an1

deposits from the pruii" withln the provisio,s of Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed there under'

As explained to r"rs and to tlie best of our kuowledge and belief, the maintenance of cost records under Sectio, l'+8( I )

of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company'

(a) Accordi,g to the infonnatior-r given to us and ou the basis of our examirration of the books of the compan-r- tltc

company has ge,erally bee. regr-rlar i,-' a.foriting r-rndisputed statutory d,es includi,g provident fund' ernploy-ees'

state insurance, incoure-tax, GST, duty of cLrstoms,iLrty of excise, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriatc

autliorities as aPPlicable to it.

Fufthennore, on the basis of the information and explauations given to Lls, no unclisputed amounts payable in respect o1'

provide,t fund, income tax, GST. dr,rty ol'custonrs. and other material statlltory dues were itl arrears as at 3 I Marcll

\iZO fora period of more tha, six months from the date they became payable'

(b) on tlie basis of the infonnation and explanations given to us, there are no material dues with respect to sales tax or

wealth tax or service tax or goods and service tax or dr,rty of custours or dLrty of excise or value added tax or eess

pending with any authorities ortn" governr.ne,t. However, according to the i,formation and explanations givert t. its '

the following dues of income tax has not been depositecl by the Cornpany on account of dispute :

IV

V

vl.

vl l.

vlll.

Forum where the disPute is

pending

Commissioner ( eals)

ln our opi,ion a,d accordi,g to the infbmation and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaLrlted irr

repayment of loans o, borrowilngs to a financial instit,tion. barrk. govei,tneut or dues to debenture holders'

The Compally did llot ralse allv blic oft'er or further pr-rblic offer (includins. clcbl
t-t]0lleV initial pLr

instrurnents). However term loan was

obtained.

Period for which amount

relates
Amount (Rs.)Nature of duesName of Statute

AY: TAII-1.2103 s250 I -lnco me Taxlncome Tax Act
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x

xl.

Place
Date

*o*fu

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with thc

g.r".ully accepted audited practices in India, and according to the inforrnation and explanations giverr to tts, we lrare

neither come across any instance of rnaterial tiaud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employ'ces"

noticed or reported during the year. nor have we been informed of any such instance by the Management.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records of the

Companyl the Company has paid/provided for managerial rernuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals

mandated by the provisions of sectiot't 191 read with Schedule V to the Act.

xii. In our opirrion and according to tlre inforrnation ancl explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi Company.

Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is rrot applicable'

xiii. Accordilg to the informatiorl ancl explanatious given to us and based on oltr exatlination of the records of the

Company, transactions with the relatecl parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act rvhere

applitabie ald details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable

Accounting Standards.

xiv. According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examirtation of the records of thc

Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or full-v" or partlr'

convertible debentures during the year.

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the

Company, the Cornpany has not entered into uon-cash transactions with Directors or persons connected with therr.

Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

xvi. According to the inforrnation and explanations given to us, the Company is a NBFC and is registered under sectiott

45-lAoftheReserveBankofIndiaAct. 1934anditsRBI RegistrationNo.isB.05.001Il.

FoT N K DAGA & ASSOCIATE,S
Chartered Accottntants
Firm Registration No .324493F.

M t9-&"fi^
(NILESH KUMARDAGA)
Proprietor
Membership No.05 9304
U D I N : 20059304AAAAA Q8766
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Kolkata
30107 12024
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N. K. DAGA&ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

1011 Ahiritolo street.
Kolkoto - 700005.

Mobile - 09830329820
E-moil : dogonilesh@Yohoo.co.in

Independent Auditors' Report

To the Members of ORCHID SECURITIES LIMITED

ooAnnexure B ,, to the Independent Auditors' Report of even date on the financial statements of ORCHID

SECURITIES LIMITED.

Report on the rnternal Financial controls under clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the companies Act, 2011

("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of oRCHID SECURITIES LTMITED ("1he

Company,,) as of March 31,2020 in conjUnction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year

ended on that date.

's Resp for I al Financial ontrols

The Company,s Managernent is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal

control over financial i'eporting criteria establishecl by the Co,r',pu,ly considering theessential components of internal control

stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Interual Financial Conirols over Financial Reporting issued by the InstitLrte ol'

Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeqLrate

internal financial controls that were op"ruiing effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its busirtess'

including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors'

the accuiacy and completeness of ihe accounting records, and the tirnely preparation of reliable financial informatiotr' es

required r"rnder the Cornpanies Act, 201 3 '

Auditors' Responsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based otr ottr'

audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the tiuidance Note orr Audit of Internal Financial Corrtrols over Firtancial

Reporti,g (the .,Guidance Note,,) and the Standards on Auditiug, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal flnattcial

"ont.olr,-both 
issued by the Institute of chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that

we comply with ethici requirements and plan and perforrn the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whetlier adequate

internal fi,ancial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectivell'

in all material respects. \

our audit involves perforuring procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial colttrols

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. our audit of internal financial controls over financial

reporting irrcluded obtainlng ariunderstancling of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a

material weakness exists, aird testing and eviluating the design ancl operating effectiveness of internal control based on the

assessed risk. The procedures selected depencl on the auditor's jLrclgement, inclr-rding the assessment of the risks of lnaterial

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to ft'attd or ert'or.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufflcient aud appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opiniotr ort

the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporling.

* +



dent Auditors' Contd.)

To the Members of ORCHID SECURITIES LIMITED

*ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDBNT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONtd.)

Meaning of Internal Financial controls over Financial Reporting

A Cornpany,s internal financial control over tlnancial repoming is a process designed to provide reasorrable assllrallce

regarding tlte reliability of financial reporting and the prepaiation of financial statements for external pllrposes in accordancc

with generally accepted accounting prln"ipI"r. A cornpany's internal financial control over fitrattcial reporting itrclucles

those policies and procedures ttrat (ty pertain to the rnaiutenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and tirirlr

reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the comp any;(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions arc

recorded as necessary to permit preparatiou of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accottnting

principles, and that receipts and expenditr-rres of the company are being rnade only in accordance with authorisations ol

i\4unug"n-,"nt and Directois of the company ; and (3)provide ieasonable assurance regarding prevention or tirnely detection

of unauthorised acquisitio1r, use, or deposiiion of tire-Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial

statement

ns of Finattcial over F

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, inclLrding the possibilitl" of'

collusion or improper Management overricle of controls, material rnisstatet.nents due to error or fraud lllay occLll'and tltll he

detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over finattcial repoftirrg to futttre pel'iocls at'e

subject to the risk ihat the internal financial control over flnancial reporling may become inadequate because of chatrges irr

.o,iditio,1r, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate'

0pinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, au adequate internal finarrcial controls system over llnancial

reporting and such internal financial controls over finaricial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020. basecl

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria establiihecl by the Cornpany considering the essential compottents o1'

internal control stated in the Cuidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the

Institute of Chartered Accoltntants of India.

t

FOT I\ K DAGA & ASSOCIATE,S
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.3 21193E

u* e*AqM t

(I\ILESH KUMAR DAGA)
Proprietor
Vlembership No.05 9301
U Dl N : 20059304AAAAAQ8766

Place
Date

Kolkata
30t07 12024
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*EC}TTI} sEC$ETETES LIA{TES.G
Balance Sheet *s at,3l*t &'f*xk. 

=*3S

Irlate
(t in takhs)

As at As at As at
31st March, 2AZA 31st March, 2019 Lst April, 20L8

15.96 9.94 17.33

No.
Particulars

Assets

fl) Financial Assets
(a) Cash and Cash Equivalents
(L',) Receivahles

(I) Trade Rerceivables
(c) Loans
(d) Other Financial Assets

(2) Non-Financial Assets
(a) Current Tax Assets (Irlet)

(b) Froperty, Plant and Equipment
(c) Other Non-Financial Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and EquW
(1) Financial Liabilities
(a) Payables

(I) Trade Payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other

{b) Borrowi*gs (Othr:r than Debt Securities)
(c) Other Financial Liabilities

{2) Non-Financial Liabilities
(a) Other Non-Financial Liabilities

t3) Equrty
(a) Equity Share Capital
(h) Other Equity

Total Liabilities and Equrty

Sigpificant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Stateme-nts
The Notes referred above are an intelyal part of the Balance Sheet.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our repcrt of even date.

For h{. K. Daga & Associates

Charterecl Acc ountants
Firm Registrabion No. 3241938

M\t,{^f
FCA Nilesh Kumar Daga
Proprietor
Membership No. 059304

Plar.e: Vadodara
Date: 3A.47.2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

2

3

4

5

6

7

I

2.90
418.40

776.M
30.86

762.97

1.55

2.54

17.11

35.55
156.49

2.t)5

3.26
13.81

0.87

1.82

31.90

217.89 224.93 228..49

I

10

71

5.00

5.03

0.25

300.01
(e3.40)

3.25

2.30

0.02

300"01

(80.65)

2.27

0.02

300.01
(74"00)

0.25

72

13

14

217.89 224.93 228.49

1-36
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Yatin Saniay GupteSoian V Avirachan
Managing Director
DIN - 07593791.

Chief Financierl Officer

Director
DIN 07261154 -Sr

en

Grishma A Shewale
Company Secretary

n
:
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*ECHID SECURITIES EEggEH*
Stategteat *f Frcfit and Loss for the yrirr **-**S 3L*t I?farch" ?S2ff

Note
No.

22

1-36

For and on hehalf of the Boarrl of Directors

(t in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended

3l"st March, 202A 3Lst March, 2019
Particulars

Revenue from Operations
(1) lnterest Income
(i1) Dividend hrcome
(iii) Net Gain on Fair Value Chang'ps

(I) Total Revenue from Operations

($ Other Income

ilII) Total Income (I+U)

Expenses
(1) Finance Costs
(iil Impairment on Financial Instruments (Net)
(iii) Employee Benefits Expenses
(iv) Depreciation, Amortisation and Impair:nent
(v) Other Expenses

(IY) Total Expenses

(V) Profit Before Exteptional Items & Tax (III-IV)
(VD Exceptional Items

(YII) Profit Before Tax (V-YI)
(Vm) Tax Expense:

(a) Current Tax
(b) Deferred Tax

(IX) Profit After Tax (YII-YIH)
tX) Other Comprehensive krcome

(il) Total Comprehensive Income for the year {IX+X}
(XII] Earnings per Equity Share (Par Value - 1B/- per Equity Share)

Basic and Diluted (in')

Sigr-rificant Acc-ounting Policies and lr{otes to Finanr:ial Statements
The lrlotes referred above are an integral part of the Statement of Profit anrl Loss.

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For N. K. Daga & Associates

Chartered Accounbants

15

16

\7

18
19

20
21

3.46
1.63

8.70

1.65
1.r11

8.18

13.79 1.4.24

0.01 0.10

13.80 74.34

4.17
17.25

2.33
12.02

(0.02)

10.,t9

2.33

8.18

25.77 20.98

(1,L.97)

(11,.97')

a.7B

(6._64|

{6.64,

(12.751 (6.64)

(12.751 {6.64}

Firm Registration No.

(0.42)

Direr-tor
DIN - 07261150 s

en

A Shewale
Company Secrehry

f': \\-.

Jiraf -
Yatin'S\niafe upte

(0.22)

rd.Is,X. Uo
FCA Nilesh Kumar Daga
Proprietor
Menrbership No. 059304

Place: Vadodara
Date: 30.t)7.2020

Sojan Y Avirachan
Managing Director
DrN - A7593791

Pathan
Chief Financial Officer

\



Particulars

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Profit Before Tax
Acljushnents for:
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment
Innpairment on Financial hrstruments
Net unrealised fair value (gain)lloss
Operating Profit before lfforking Capital Changes
Adjustment for:
(Inr:rease)/ Decrease in Tracle Receivables ancl Other Assets
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other Financial Assets
(krcrease)l Decrease in Loans
Inuease/(Decrease) in Payables and Other Liabilities
Cash Generatedl (used) in operations
Direct Taxes paid
NIet Cash (Used lnl) I Generated from Operating Activities

B. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Increase/(Decrease) in Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)

Net Cash (Used i*) I Generated from Financing Activities

Net Increase/(Derrease) in Cash and Cash equivalents tA+B)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

For N. K. Daga & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg,istration No.

{}RCHID SECURITIES LIL{TTE.T}

Statem*nt af Cash Flows for the year ended Stst Ma:rlU tfiz*

For ancL on behalf of the Board of Directors

9.69 (3.65)

(3.87) (4.41)

28.78 (7.16:)

{32.72} 1.6e
(0.30) 3.36

0.58 {7.17}.
(0.52) (0.01)

0.06 (7.1S)

6.00 (0.25)

6.00 {0.25}

(7.43)

17.33

9.90

Yatin
Direr:tor
DIIV - A7267150

6n

Grishma A Shewale
Company Secretary

(t in lakhs)
Year ended Year ended

3Lst Marth,2020 31st March, zULg

{11,.9n {6.6.4)

?qq
0.17

18.16

2.33
(0.02)

0.68

6.06

9.90

75.96

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents

Note: The above State.ment of Cash Flo*,s has been prepared under the Indirect Method as set out in the krd AS 7 'Statem€nt of
Cash Flows'.

This is the Statement of Cash Flows refened to in our report of even date.

T in Lakhs

"A/"ii!^'L 
h' \

FCA Nilesh Kumar Daga
Proprieltor
Membership No. 059304

Place: Vadodara
Date: 34.A7.2020

Soian V Avirachan
Managing Director
DII{ - 07593791

Pathan

ft

Particulars
As at

31st lMarch, 2O2O

As at
31st Marth, 2A79

7.88

3.08

5.00

6.40
3.50

Cash ancl Cash Equivalents at the end of the period
Cash on Hand
Balances with Banks - in Current Accounts
Cheques on Hancl

L5.95 9.90

q#r,fi14
t

+

Chief Financial Officer



A. Equity Share Capital
ill

B. Other Equity

This is the State.ment of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even clate.

For N. K. Daga

*Eil?{T* *ETLI5$TIE5 LIh.{ITEI}
$tate**nt *f Ck**g** ila E$*it3. f*r tht year *nded 3Lst March, 2t)2ff

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors

ln

Chartered
Firrn

I

FCA
Proprietor
Membership

Place: Vadodara
Date: 30.A7.2020

\r{frn
Daga

ffd

$d*

324493E

+
Soian V Avirachan
Managing Director
DrN - 07593791

Khan Pathan
Chief Financial Ofricer

Yatin S Gupte
Director
DrN - A726L150 F

Grishma A Shewale
Company Secretary

AmountParticulars
300.01"

300.01

300.01"

As at 1st April, 20L8

Changes rn equitv share capital during the year
As at 3Lst March, 2A19

Changes in equity share capital cluring the year
As at 31st Mamh, 2A2O

Reserves

Total

Special Reserue
(pursuant to

Section 45IC of The
Resenre Bank of India

Act, 19Yl \

Retained
Earnings

Particulars

{0.01)

(79.L5)

{6.e)

(0.01)

(74.0fr1

(6.#)
Balance as at the Lst April, 2018 (restated)
Profitl (Loss) for the year
Transfer from retained earnings
Income tax of earlier vear

5.15

{95.90) {90.65}Balance as at 3Lst March, 2A19 5.L5
(12.7s) (12.75)Profit/ (Loss) for the year

Transfer fuom retained earnings
5.15 (98.55) {93.40}Balance as at 3Lst March, 2O2O

\



As at
31st March, 2019

As at
Lst April, 20L8

Particulars
As at

3Lst March, 202t)

7.88

3.08
5.00

6.40
3.50

3.65
13.68

Cash on Hand
Balances with Banks - in Current Accounts
Cheques on Hand,

17.3315.96 9.90Total

ORCHID SECURTTIES LEh{ETEI}
Ir,lotes to the Financial Statrx*a* f*r tk* F**r ***** 31st March, 2020

2. Cash and Cash Equivalents
atn

3. Receivables
({ iil lakhs}

4. Loans
in

Note: None of the loans are measured at fair value at each reporting date. Accordingly the above disclosure has been
given for loans carried at Amortised Cost in lines with format as prescribed in Division III of Schedule III to the
Companies Act,2013.

5' other Financial Assets 
(< in lakhs)

6. Curent Tax Assets (Net)
(t in lakhs)

\

Particulars
As at

3l"st March, 2020

As at
3Lst March, 2019

As at
Lst April, 20L8

(Unsecured Considered Good)
Trade Receivables 2.94

Total 2.90

Particulars
As at

31"st March, 2AZA

As at
31st March, 2819

As at
].st April 2013

71.19 56.48 61,.79

(A)
Loans repayable on demand (At Amortised Cost)

Total (A) {Gross} 74,19 56.48 61..19

Less: Impairment loss allowance 25,79 25.62 25.64

Total (A) (I.tet) 48.40 30.86 35.55

(B)
(i) Secured
(ii) Unsecured 74"19 56.4f1 61.19

Total {B} (Gross} 74.19 56.48 61..19

Less: Impairment loss allowanre 25.79 25.62 25"ffi

Total {B} (Net} 48.40 30.86 35.55

71.1,9 56.48 61 .19

(C) (D Loans in hrdia
{i) Public Sector
(ii) Others

71.19 56.48 61.19Total (C) (I) (Gross)

Less: hlpairment loss allowance 25.79 25.62 25.&
Total (C) {I} (Net} 48.40 30.86 35"55

(C) (U) Loans outside India

48.40 30.86 35.55Total (C) (I) and {C} {II}

Particulars
As at

31"st March, 2020
As at

31st March,2019
As at

Lst April, 20L8
Equity instruments held as stock in trade
(measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss)
Ser urily Deposits
(measurecl at Amorlisecl Cost)

116.01

0.03

162.91

0.03

156.46

0.03

Total LL6.04 1,62.97 156.49

K As at
31st March, 2020

As at
3lst March. 2019

As at
Lst Anril, 2018Advance'*:[Hl 

Ltr#khs' 
31sr

March 2019:

0.87 1.55 2.05

Total I{4 trn A -/' \;1} 0.87 1.55 2.05
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Particulars
As at

31st March, 202A

As at
3Lst March, hULg

As at
1"st April, 201"8

23.00

7.A0

0.30
1.60 3.21,

8.00

5.90

8"00
0.82
0.17
4.82

Advance to Parties
Advance to Staff
Prepaid Expenses
Preliminary Expenses

1"3.813L.90 17.11"Total

ORCHID SECTIRITTES LEg$ET=""T}

Notes to the Financial Stat*m*n* frlr f&* y**s ***** 3l*t Mash, 2S2S

$. Other Non-Financial Assets
tn

9. Payables
in lakhs)

9.1 Dues of Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
20ffi

in

Dues as above, to the Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises have
reliecl upon by the auditors.

Management.

L0. Bomowings {Other than Debt Securities)
ul

*Securecl ag,a inst hypothecation cat

Note: None of the borrowings are measured at fair value at each reporting date. Accordingly the above dirlosure has been
given for borrowings carried at Amortised Cost in lines with format as prescribed in Division III of Schedule III to the
Companies Act,2013.

\

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2OZA

As at
3Lst March, hULg

As at
Lst April 20L8

Trade Payables

total outstanding dues of mir;ro enterprises and small
enterprises (refer Note No. 9.1)

total outstancliog dues of creditors other than micro
en[erprises and small enterprises

3.25

3.25Tatal

Particulars
As at

3Lst Marth, 2020
As at

31st March, 2A19
As at

l"st Auril, 2{}L&

a) The principal amount and interest clue thereon remaining unpaid
to any supplier
h) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2AA6,

atrong with the amount of payment made to the supplier beyontl the
appointed clay

c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond &e appointect
duy) but rvithout aelding the interest specified under the lv{icro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

d) The amount of interest accrued and" remaining unpaid
e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payahle even in
the succeeding year until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid tt-r the small enterprise, for the purpose of clisallowance
of a decluctible expr:ncliture under section 23 of the Lzlicro, Small anrl
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006

Total

Particulars
As at

3Lst March, 2A2O

As at
3l"st March, 2019

As at
Lst April, 2018

{At Amortisecl Cost)
Secured*

Car Loan

Unsecured
Loans from related parties T 6.00

0.25

Total (A) \\st ' lcol I 6.00 0.25

Borrowings in lndia
Borrowings outside India

6.00 0.25

6.00Total {B}
\*=:F'- 0.25



Particulars
As at

31st March, 202A

As at
3Lst Manh, 20tg

As at
I.st April, 20L8

Outstandi*g Liabilities for Expenses s.03 2.30 2.21

Total 5.03 2.30 2,21

ORCHID SECLIfi.ITIES tEryEEET}

Notes to the Financial Stat*x*:-t= fsr tk* F**r *r-*** SLst SIarrh, 202t1

11. Other Financial Liabilities
(T in lakhs)

1.2. Other Non-Financial Liabilities
in lakhs)

L3. Equity Share Capital
ilt

(a) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstandiog

(b) Rights, prcferences and rcstrictions in respect of Equrty Shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of' 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one
vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividends in lndian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is
subiect to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company
after distrrbution of all preferential amount. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the share
holders.

(c) Iletails of Shareholders holding more than la/a sf the equity shares each

\

As at
31"st March, 202A

As at
3Lst March, 2019

As at
lst April,201..8Particulars

Statutory Liabilities 4.25 0.02 0.02

0.02 0.02Total 0.25

Particularr
As at

31"st Marrh, 2029

As at
31"st March, 20L9

As at
Lst April, 20L8

325.00 325.00 325.00

325.00325.00 325.00

Authorised Share Capital
32,50,000 {31st IVIarr:h 2019: 32,50,000, 1st Aptil, 2018: 32,50,000) Equity
Shares of' 10/- each

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
30,t10,100 (31st March, 2A19 30,00,100, 1st Aprrl, 2018; 30,00,100) Equity
Shares of' 101- each

300.01 300.01 300.01

300.01" 300.01" 300.01Total

Equity Shares

As at 31st Marth, 202A As at 31st Mamh, 2019 As at Lst April,2018
No. of
Shares

t in lakhs
No. of
Shares

t in lakhs
No. of
Shares

t in lakhs

At the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the year
At the end of the vear

30,00,100

30,00,1,00

3,0o01",000.00

3,00,01,000.00

30,00,100

30,00,100

3,00,01",000.00

3,00,01,0t,0.00

30,00,100

30,t10,100

3,00,01",000.00

3,00,0:1",000.00

Name of the sharrcholder:s

As at 3Lst Marth, 2A20 As at 3Lst Marth, 2019 As at Lst April,2018
No. of
Shares

a/o af
Shareholding

No. of
Sharres

o/a of
Shareholding

No, of
Shares

ah of
Shareholding

Yatin Sanjay Gupte
Vettukallel Avirachan Sojan
Venkata Ramana Revuru
Kiran Baid
Baboolal Birmecha

4,30,600
3,6e800
2,77,20A

1,4.35y.

12,09y,
9.24%

1,79,97&
2,97,90A

6.00%

9.93%
1,79,979
2,g7,gaa

6.00r,
9.93%

ryc{&{



As at
3Lst Matrh, zffig

As at
Lst April, 201"8

Particulars
As at

3Lst March, 2O2A

5.15

Special Reserve (Rr:serve Fund as per Section "+s-IC of Tl're

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934)

Opening balance
Add: Transfer from retained earnings .

5.15

5.L5 5.L5 5.L5Closing balance
(8s.80)

t12.7s)
{7e.7s)
(6.a)
{0.01)

Retained Earninf{s
Add: Profit/ (Loss) for the year
Less: lncome tax of earlier year

(79.15){98.55} (85.80)Closing balance
(80.65) (74.00)(93.40)TotaI

ORCHID SECTIf$TEES EE#gEEg}

Notes to the Fiaa*ci*E *f*t*s*:rtr f*r ** F**s ***** =E*t 
kf*erk, ffi

L4. Other Equity
(t in

Nature and purpose of reserrres

(i) Special Reserrre (Resewe Fund as per Section 45-IC of The Reser.ve Bank of India Act,1934)

Transfer of 207o of the profit after tax hefore re-measurement adfustnents on transition to Ilrd AS, if any, to the statutory

reserves in accordance with the provision of Section 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934.

The conditions and restrictions for distribution attached to Special Reserve is as follows:
No appropriaHon of any sum from the reserve fund shall be made by the Company except for the purpose as may be

specified by the RBI from time to time and every such approprialion shall be reported to the RBI within twenty-one days

from the date of such withdrawal. RBI may, in any particular case and for sufficient cause being shown, extend the period of
twenty one days by such further period as it thinks 6t or condone any delay in making such report.
(ii) Retained Earnings
This reserve represents the cumulative profiLs of the Company. This.can be utilised in accordance with the provisions of the

Companies Act,2013.

15. Interest Income
1n

16. Net Gain on Fair Yalue Changes
aln

17. Other Income
1n

L8. Impainnent on Financial Instmments (Net)
a

rn

\

Particulars
Year ended

31st March, 20?:0

Year ended
3Lst March, }ULg

hrterest on loans measured at amortised r-ost 3.46 4.65

3,46 4.65Total

Particulars
Year ended

31st March, 202A

Year ended
SLst March, 2B1:9

8.188.70

8.L88.70

Net f,offi on tinancial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
On trading portfolio
Equity instruments held as stock in Lrade
Total Net Gain on Fair Yalue Changes (A)

Realised
Unrealised

26.86
(18.16)

8.86
(0.68)

8.70 8.1.8Total Net Gain on Fair Value Changes (B)

Particulars
Year ended

31st March, 2020
Year ended

3Lst March,'ZUL}
Interest on hrcome Tax Refund
Liabilities no longpr required written back

0.01 0.07

0.03

0.0L 0.L0Total

Particulars il N
Year ended

31st March, 2020

Year ended
3Lst March,2019

On loans measured at amortised cost
Provision for impairment loss allowance

for Standartl Assets write off H}
0.17

(0.02)

o.17 (0.02)\\Total ry



Particularc
Year ended

3Lst Marrh, 2020
Year ended

31st March,2A1,9

Salaries
Bonus

10.69
0.55

9.97

0.52

Total 11,.25 L0.49

ORCHID SECLI{IITTES T.E&{E"g.g}

Notes to the Financial ttat*s**-*s f*r tk* y**r *cs$*g FE"*t B{*rr&. *3H}

L9. Employee Benefits Erpenses

20. Depreciation, Amcrtisation and Impainnent

21,. Other Expenses

2L."1. Auditoy's Fees and Expenses

22. Earnings Per Equrty Share

23. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

({ in takhs}

in lakhs)

a

rn

ln

(t in lakhs)

\

Year ended
31st March, 2020

Year ended
31st March, 201"9

Particulars

a.72
7.61

012
1.61,

Deipreciation
Amorlisation of Preliminary Expenses

2.33 2.33Total

Year ended
31st March, 2A19

Year ended
3Lst March, 202A

Particulars

1.47

a.07

0.35
0.41

0.20

a.&t
4.42

6.38
0.34

0.61

0.71

0.40
0.02

1.4t)

0.11

4.22

0.52

0.21

0.15

0.30
3.44
0.70

0"61

0.45

0.07

Rent, Taxes and Energy Costs
Repairs and Maintenance
Communication Costs
Printing anrl Stationery
Aclverti sement and Publicit,v
Dirertor's Fees, Allawances and Expenses

Auditor's Fees and Expenses (refer Note No. 21.1)

Legal and Professional charges
Postage and Stamps
lvlotor Car Expenses
lvlembership Fees

General Charges
Other Expenses

12.02 8.18Total

Year ended
31"st March,202A

Year ended
31st March, 2A19

Particulars

Statutory Auclit Fees

Tax Audit Fees

Certification Fees

0.20
0.05
4..17

0.13
0.05
0.12
0.304,42Total

Particulars
Year ended

31"st March, 2820
Year ended

3Lst lVlarr:h, 2A19

(a) Profit after tax attributable to Equity Shareholders (' in lakhs)
(b) I{eighterd average numher of Equity Shares
(c) Nominal Value of Equity per share (')
(d) Basic Earnins.s per share (a)l&) f )

(12.75)
30,00,100

10.00
(0.'12)

(6.&)
30,00,1OCI

10.txl

io.zzl

Particulars
As at

31st March, 2020
As at

31st March, 2019

As at
Lst April, 2018

10.39Bffi::llor .quressment Year 2a11 -721

L0.39{/*.7 \ta\\Total

rffir,ef^
.x

I
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24. Maturity Analysis of Assets and Liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled:

1n

ln

25. First Time Adoption

Ind AS 101 "First-time Adoption of tndian Accounting Standards" provides a suitable starting point for accounting in accordance with
Ind AS and is required to be mandatorily followed by first-time adopters. The Company has prepared the Opening Balance Sheet as per

Ind AS as at 1st April, 2018 (the transition date) by recognising all assets and liabilities whose recogrrition is required by Ind AS, not
recognising items of assets or liabiliUes which are not permitted by Ind A9 redassifying items from previous Indian GAAP to Ind AS as

required uader lnd AS and applying Ind AS in measurement of recognised assets and liabiILies. However, this principle is subject to
certain mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions out of which the ones which are relevant for the Company are as detailed below:

Mandatory exceptions to the retr,ospective application of lnd AS

(i) Estimates

The estimates at 1st April, 2018 and at 31st March, 2019 xe consistent with those made for the same dates in accordance with previous

Indian GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any differences in accounting policies). The estimates used by the Company to present these

amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at 1st April 2018, the date of transiLion to Ind AS and as at 31st March, 2019.

(ii) Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on the basis of the facts and circumstances that
existed at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Voluntary exemptions availed

(i) Derccognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
As per hrd AS 101 - An entity shall apply the exception to the retrospective application in case of "derecognition of financial assets and

financial liabilities" wherein a first-time adopter shall apply the derecogn:ition requirements in hrd AS 109 prospectively for tralsactions
occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind A5. For example, if a first-time adopter derecogrrised non-derivative financial assets or
non-derivative financial liabilities in accordance with its previous GAAP as a result of a transaction that occurred before the date of
transiLion to Ind AS, it shall not recogrrise those assets and liabilities in accordance with Ind AS (unless they qualify for recognition as a

result of a Later transaction or event). The Company has opted not to re-evaluate financial assets derecognised in the past and to apply
the derecogrrition requirements prospecHvely for transacLions occturing on or after the transition date.

(ifl rrastili.udon of Debt Inshrrments
The Company has determined the classification of debt instruments in terms of whether they meet the amortised cost criteria based on
the fac,ts and circumstances that existed as on the tralsition date.
(iii) Impainnent of Financial Assets

The Company has applied the impairment reqrdrements of Ind AS 1@ retrospectively; however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost nr effort to determine the credit risk at the date that
financjal instnrments were initially recognized in order to compare it with the ffedit risk at the transihion date. Further, the Compaay has

nr)t undertaken an exhausti for information when dete.rmining, at the date of transiHon to Ind AS, whether there have been

\

As at I"st April, 201"8As at 3Lst Marth, 2020 As at 31st March

Total
Within L2

Months
After L2

Months
TotalWithin 12

Months
After 12

Months
Total

Within 12

Months
After L2

Months
Assets

17.11.

9.90

30.86
162.97

1.55

2.54

9.9r)

30.tt6

762.97

1.55

2.51

17.11

17.33

13.81

35.55

156.49
2.05

3._26

17.33

35.55

156.{tq

2.05

3.26
13.8131.90

15.96

2.90

31.66 1.6.74

116.04
0.87
1..82

15.96

2.90

48.40
116.04

0.87
1.82

31.90

Cash and" Cash Equivalents
Receivables

Loans
Other Financial Assets

Current Tax Assets (Net)
Property, Plant and Equipment
Other Non-Financial Assets

As at 1,st April,20\8As at 31st March, 2020 As at 31st March

Total
Within L2

Months
After L2

Months
TotalWithin L2

Months
After 12

Months
Total

Within L2

Months
After L2

Months
Liabilities

{}.25

2.21

0.t)2

6.00
5.03
r).25

6.r')0

5.03

0.25

3.25

234
0.02

3.25

2.30
0.02

0.25

2.21

0.02

Payables
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Other Financial Liabilities
Other Non-Financial Liabilities

significant increases in recognition, as permittecl tr_v Ind AS 101.



As at
31st March, 201-9

As at
1st April, 2018

Particulars

219.36 226.fi1Equrty as rleported under previous Indian GAAP
Reureasurements on transition to Ind AS

226"01219.36Equity as reported under Ind AS

ORCHID SECURTTTES LTE*}"Er}
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25.1 Reconciliation of Equity as previously rtporhd underpcvious tndian GAAP to Ind AS
t{ in

25.2 Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended 31st Marth,, 2819
ln

26. Capital Management

The primary obiectives of the Company's capital management policy are to ensure that the Company complies with extenrally
imposed capital requirements and maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and to
maximise shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structu,re ald makes adjustments to it according to changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company
may adjust the amount of dividend payment to shareholders, retum capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No dranges
have been made to the objectives, policies ard processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review hy the
Board.

27. Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures
This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional infonnation on
balance sheet items that contain financial instruments. The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for
recogq.ition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognised in respect of each class of Financial
Asset, Financial Liability ard Equity Instrument are disclosed in Note No. 1.12 to the financial statements.

(a) Categories of Financial [nshuments
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts ard fair value of the Company's financial instruments:

ln

Note: Carrying values of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost are a reasonable

\

Ye;rr ended
3Lst Marth, 2019Particulars

(6.54)

{6.641

Prcfit After Tax as reported under previous Indian GAAP
Adiustments on tratuition to InrJ AS
Profit After Tax as reported under Ind AS
Other Comprehensive lncome

{6.6{}Total Comprehensive Income as repofted under Ind AS

As at 3Lst 2420 As at 3Lst March, 20L9 As at lst April,2018
Particulars Carrying

VaIue
Fair

Value
Carrying

Value
Fair

\ralue
Carrying

Value
Fair

Yalue
Financial Assets
(i) Ivleasured at ArnorUsed Cost
Cash and Cash Equivalellts
Receivahles
Loans
Other Financial Assets

15.96

2.90
48.40

0.03

75.96
2.90

r18.40

0.03

9.90

30.86
0.03

9.90

30.86
0.03

17.33

35.55

0.03

1n 4rt
I. / .JJ

35"55

0.03

Sub-total 67.29 67.29 48.79 40.79 52.9"1, 52.9L

(iilMeasured at Fair Value through Profit
or Loss
Other Financial Assets 116.01 116.01 162.94 762.94 156.16 156.46
Sub-total L16.01 L16.01 162.94 162.94 156.46 156.46
Total Financial Assets L83.30 183.30 203"73 2A3.73 249.37 209.37
Financial Liabilities
(i) Measured at Amortised Cost
Payables
Borrowings (Other than Debt Securities)
Other Financial Liabilities

6.00

5.03

6.00
5.03

3.25

2.30

3.25

2.30

0.25

2.21

0.25
2.27

Total Financial Liabilities 1"L.03 Lt.03 5.55 5.55 2.46 2,46

their fair values.
approximation of
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(b) FairValue Hiemrhy
The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair
value, grouped into l€vel 1 to Level 3, as described below:
Quoted prices in an active market (Level 1): Quoted prices (unadiusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that

the entitv cafl access at the measurement date.
Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2): Inputs other than quoted prices included w'ithin level 1 that are

observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices). It includes fair
value of the financial instruments that are not traded in an active market and are determined by using valuation tec}niques.

These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on

the company specific estimated. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, then the

instrument is included in level 2.
Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): If one or more of the sigrrificant inputs is not based on

observable market data, the insbrument is included in level 3.

{{ in

28. Risk Management
Whilst dsk is inherent in the Compaly's activities, it is managed through an integtated risk management framework
including ongoing identification, measurement and monitoring, subiect to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk
maragement is critical to the Company's continuing profitabllity and each individual within the Company is accountable for
the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibiliUes. The Company is mainly exposed to market risk liquidity risk and

credit risk. It is also subject to various operating and business risks. The Board of Directors are responsible for the overall risk
management approach and for approving the risk management strategies and principles.
(a) Ma*etRisk
The Company is exposed to equity price risk arising from its equity instruments held as stock in trade. Equity price risk is
related to the change in market reference price of the investment in equity securities. The Company considers factors such as

track recor{ market reputatior; fundamental and technical analysis for dealing in such instruments.
(b) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company does not have sufficient financial resources to meet its obligations as they fall due
or will have to do so at an excessive cost. This risk arises from mismatches in the timing of cash flows which is inherent in all
finance driven organisations arrd can be affected by a range of Company-specific and market-wide events.

Liquidity risk management
(t in lakhs)

in takhs)

\

Level 2 Level 3 TotalAs at Level LParticulars
116.41 116.0131st March 2020

1.62.91 '1,62.9431st fuIarch, 2019
156.16 156..{6

Financial Assets
Other Financial Assets

Erruitv instruments held as stock in trade 1st April, 2018

Particulart
As at 3Lst March, 2AZA

Less than 3

months
3 to 1"2

months
>L2

months
Total

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables

Loans
Other Financial Assets

15.96

2.9A

31.66 16.74

116.04

15.96

2.90

48.40

116.04

Total L8.86 3L.66 132.78 1"83.31

Financial Liabilities
i) Payables

ii) Borro$rings
iii) Other Financial Liabilities 5.03

6.00 r.oo
5.03

Total 5.03 6.00 Ll.03

As at 3Lst 2At9
Particular':s Less than 3

months
3tot?

months
>12

months
Total

9.90

30.86

162.97

9.qtj

30.86

1.62.97

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables

Loans
Other Financial Assets

9.90 193.83 203"73

Financial Liabilities
i) Fayables
ii) Borrclwings
iii) Other Financial Liabilities {ffffit*.X

3.25

2.30

3.25

2"3fr

\KL*. ,/4tTotal 5.55 5.55



As at tr"st April, 20L8

>12
months

TotalParticulans Less than 3

months
3 to 1"2

months

'r7 
"33

35.55

156.49

17.33

35.55

156.19

Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables

Loans
Other Financial Assets

L92.M 209.37Total 17.33

0.25

2.21

o.zs
2.21

Financial Liabilities
i) Payables

ii) Borrow'ings
iii) Ottrer Financial Liabilities

2,462,46Total

(c) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that the Company will incur a loss because its customers or counterparties fail to discharge their contractual
obligations. The Company has established a credit quality review process to provide early identification of possible changes in the

creditworthiness of counterparties. The credit quality review process aims to allow the Company to assess the potential loss as a

result of the risks to which it is exposed and take corrective actions.

Reconciliation of Expected Credit Loss (ECL) allowance on loans is given below:

ORCHID SECLiRTTIES LSB{EEE*
Notes to the Fimnci*: Statr*rsrt$ f*r tk* E*irr *g**d 3Lst l!{arth, 2AZA

29, Disclosure puffiuant to Ind AS 1"2 " Income Taxes'*

The reconcfiation of estimated income tax to income tax expense is as helow:

30. Disclosure pumuant to Indian Accounting Stafldad 24 - 'Related Party Disclosuresn

K*y Management Pemonnel (KMP):
(i) Saiidhusain Ismailmiya Malek - Non-executive l)irector, w.e.f 31,/ffi/202A*

(ii) Bhargav Govindprasad Pandya - Non-executive Director, rA,.e .t 31/0:1/ 2A2A*

(iii) Yandana Ravintlran Nanbiar - Non-execuLive Director, w.e.f 31 /0;1/ 202A*

(iv) Mohsin Khan Pathan - Chief Financial Officer/ w.e. f 01/ 02/ 2AZA

(v) Grishma A Shewale - Company Seretary/ w.e.f 01/03/2020
(vi) B" L. Birmecha - VVhole time Director/ upto A1,106/2A19

(vii) U.K. Nahata - Non-exemtive Director, upto 31,10-Ll2AZA

(viii) L.P. Saraogi - Non-executive Director, upto 31/01 /2020*
(ix) Deepak Banthia - Non-executive Director, upto 31 101 / 202A"

(x) Dimple Gupta - i{on-execlltive Director/ upto 37/A1/202A
(xi) H.M. Baid - Chief Financial Officer, upto 31/01,/202A
(xii) Shoaib Quarashi - Company Secretarf, upto 3A/A512019

(xiii) Rimi Agarwal - Company Serretary, r4/.e .t 24 / A8 / zAW and upto 3A I 07 / 2020
*also intlependent

rn

ltr

{{ i* takhs}

As at 31"st March, 202A As at 3Lst March, 2019

Stage
'1, &.2

Stage 3 Total
Stage

1&2 Stage 3 Total
Particulars

25.&

(0.02)

ECL allowanc€ - opening balance
Additions
Amounts written off

0.12
0.17

25.50 25,62

a.17
0.L4

(0.02)

25.50

ECL allowance - closins balance 0.29 25.50 25.79 4.12 25.50 25.62

Particulars
Year ended

31st March, 2020

Year ended
3Lst Marth, 2$L9

Prcfitl(Loss) Before Tax
Statutory Income Tax Rate

Expected" income tax expense at statutory income tax rate
(i) Impact of MAT computation
(ii) Inr:ome exempt from tax/Items not cleductible (net)

{iii} Difference due to tax impact of business losses

Total Tax Expense recognised in Statement of Pmfit and Loss

(11..9\
26.00y..

(3.L1)

3.57

0.31

0.78

(6"641

26.A1)%

(1".731

1.73

t@a*



Year Ended Year Ended

For the
year

Balance

Outstanding
as on
3Lst

March, 2019

Balance

Outstanding
as on
1st

April,20L8

I.{ame of the parfy
and Nature of Relationship

Nature of
Transaction

For the
year

Balance

Outstanding
as on
31st

March, 2AZB

KMP
(i) Sajirlhusain Ismailmiya Malek
(ii) Bhargav Govindprasad Pandya
(iii) Vandana Rar,{ndran Nambiar
(iv) M*hsin Kh;rn Pathem
(v) Grishma A Shewale
(vi) B. L. Birmecha

(vii) U.K. Nahata
(viii) L.P. Saraogi
(ix) Deepak Banthia
(x) Dimple Gupta
(xi) H.M. Baid
(xii) Shoaib Quarashi
(xru) Rimi Agarwal

Sitting Fees

Sitting Fees

Sitting Fees

Salary
Salary

Sitting Fees

Salary
Sitting Fees

Sitting Fees

Sitting Fees

Sitting Fees

5a1ary

Salary
Salary

0.15
0.15
0.15
1.10

0.35

0.01
0.52
0.05

0.05
0.05
0.05
7.91

0.60

0.98

0.14
0.14
0.14

0.5s
0.35

0.04
0.&r
0.04
0.04

0.03
3.00

0.03
0.03

0.02
0.02
2.62

1.79

0.30
0.25

0.23
4.22
0.47
0,04
4.1,9

0.27
0.25

0.20
0.16

0.05
{}.02

0.19
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Details of Related Parfy Transactions:
a

UT

Ortstandingbalances payable at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.

31. The Company's main business is financing and de.aling in shares. As such, there are no separate reportable segments, as per
Ind AS 108 "Operating Segm.ents", issued by the Instihrte of Chartered Accountants of Lrdia.

32, In accordance with [rd AS 109 "Financial lnstruments", in respect of Stage 3 assets interest is booked net of ECL. Since
impairment on Stag,e 3 assets have been fully provided for, interest has not been recognised as income on such assets during the
year to the extent of ' 3.82 lakhs (previous year: ' 3.82 lakhs).

33. No Deferred Tax Asset has been recogr.rised as per Lrd AS 12 "Income Taxes", as it is not probable that taxable profit will be

available in the future against n'hich such deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

34. COVID-19, a global pandemic has affected the world economy including Lldia leading to significant decline and volatility in
financial markets and decline in economic activities. On 24th March, 202O the trdian Govemmmt announced a stdct 21-day lock
donrn, which has been extended from time to time with or without relaxations across the country based on the severity of the
spread at local levels. The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will impact the business operations and financial results of
the Company and consequently the estimates and iudgements made, could vary on future developme.nts/ which are uncertain at
this point of time. However, the Company, based on current indicators of future economic conditions, has assessed that it will be
able to rerover the carrvino amolrnts of its assets-

35. Disclosure as required under Annexure II of Master Direction - Core Inveshent Companies (Reserve Bark), Direction,201.6 -

"Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-deposit taking Core Invesbnent Company" is enclosed separately under Annexure A.
Disclosure as required by RBI circular no. RBI/2019-20/170 DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.No.109/22.1.0.106/2019-20 dated 13th March,
2020 is enclosed separately under Annexure B.

36. Figures pertaining to previous year have been rearranged/ regrouped, wherever necessary/ to make them comparable with
those of current year.

For N. K. Daga & Associates For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

Mh
Firm RegistraLion No.

\
,/'* \r

rt\

+\,r {\_-{
Yatin Eanjay GupteFCA Nilesh Kumar

Proprietor
Membership No. 059304

Place: Vadodara
Date: 30.07.2020

Sojan Y Avirachan
Managing Director
DrN - A7593791

Pathan

Director
DrN - 07261150

ce

Grishma A Shewale
Company Secrehary

{orrfiErA

Chief Financial Officer

ff
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Annexure A {continued}

5. Borrow group-wrse classification of all leased assets, stock on hire and loans and advances:
ln

6. Investor group-wise classification of all inveshnents (current and long term) in shares and securiLies (both quoted and unquoted):

per

7. Other Inforuration
ln

Notes:
1. Pursuant to implementation of lnd AS, all disdosures are in compliance of the same. Loans are disclosed net of ECL.

2. The same as disclosed in the Balance Sheet under Other Financial Assets in compliance with Ind AS 109.

3. Previous years'figures have been disclosed as per lnd AS.

rn

+
rys*6q

As at 31st Marth, 2B1:9

Amount of net of Prcvisions
As at 31st Marth, 2020

Amount of net of Prtvisions
TotalLJnsecured Total Secured Unsecured

Category
Secured

NIL
NIL
NIL
48.40

NTL

I{IL
NIL
48.40

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL
30.86

NIL
I{IL
NIL
30.8f!

1. Related Parties'r*
(a) Subsidiaries
(h) Companies in the same group
(c) Other related parties

2. Other than related parties

NIL
NIL
NIL

30.86 30.8648.40 48.40Total

As at 31st March, 20L9As at 31"st Marh, 2020

Book Yalue
(Net of

Provisions)

Market Vatue/Break up or Fair
Value

Or NAV

Book Value
(I.,let of

Pruvisions)

Category
Market Value/Break up

or Fair Value
or NAY

1. Related Parties**
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same group
(c) Other related parties

2. Gther than related parties

NIL
NIL
NIL

116.01

I{IL
NIL
NIL

116.01

NIL
NIL
NIL

762.91

NIL
NIL
I{IL

1,62.94

I.16.01. 152.94 162.94Total L1.6.0L

As at
3Lst March, 2020

As at
3Lst March, 20I"9

Particulars

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related parties

(ii) Net Non-Performing Assets

(a) Relatertr parties
(b) Other than related parties

(iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

NIL
25.50

NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
25.50

I\iIL
NIL
I{IL

25.50 25.50Toftrl

T
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Annexure A
{t in lakhs}

ilI

Particulars

As at 31st March, 2020 As at 3Lst March, 2019

Amount
Outstanding

Amount
Overdue

Amount
Outstanding

Amourrt
Overdue

Liabilities Side:
1. Loans and advant-es availed by the NBFCs inclusive of interest

accrued thereon but not paid:
(a) Debentures:

Secured

Unsecured
(other than falling within the nreaning of Public Deposits)

(b) Deferred Credits
(c) Term Loans
(d) Inter-corporate Loans and Borrowing
(e) Commercial Paper
(f) Other Loans

NIL
i\iIL

NIL
NIL
6.00

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
I{IL
NIL
I{IL

NIL
NIL

NIL
I{IL
I{IL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
I{IL
NIL
I{IL

As at 3Lst Marth, 2820

Amount outstanditg
As at 31"st Marth, 201-9

Amount outstandittg
Particulars

NIL
NlL

NIL
48.40

115.73

0.28

NIL
NIL
I{IL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

I{IL

NIL
NIL
hIIL
NIL
NIL

NiIL
NIL
hIIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIIL

NIL
NIL

I{IL
30.86

747.25

0.15

NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

15.54

NIL
NIL
NIL
T\TIL

NIL

I\iIL

NIt.
NIL
NIL
NIL
NIL

NIL
NIL
NIL
I{IL
NIL
NIL

}.IIL
NiL

NIIL
hIIL

NIL
NIL

Asset side:
2. Break up of Loans and Advances includiog bills receivables (other

than those included in (3) helow):

{a) Secured
(b) [Jnsecured {Refer Note 1}

3. Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and other assets

counting tow.ards asset financing activities :

(r) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:
(a) Financial Lease

(b) Operating Lease

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) Assets on hire
(b) Repossessed Assets

(iii) Other loans counting tor+,ards asset financing activities:
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed

(b) Loans other than (a) above

4. Break-up of Investments: {Refer Note 2}

Current Investments:
1. Quoted:

(1) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference

(i1) Debentures and Bonrls
(iii) Units of h{utual Funds
(irr) Government Securities
(") Others (Please specify)

2. Unquoted:
(1) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference

tii) Debentures ancl Bond.s

(iii) Units of MuLual Funds
(i") Government Securities
(") Others (Please sperify)

Long Term Inveslments:
1. Quoted:

(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(t ) Preference

(ii) Dehentures & Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutual Fund
(irr) Government Securities
(") Others (Please specify)

2. Unquoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity

(b) Preference

tii) Debentures & Boncls
(lii) Units of Mutual Fund
(iv) Government Securities
(") Others (Please specify)
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ORCHID SECURITIES LIMITE*
Notes to the Financial Statsroerrts far the yr*r rnded 31,st Marth, 2020

Annexure B

Comparison between provisions required uader IRACP and impairment allowances made under lnd AS 109 is given below:
tt in

Provision
rcquitrd as per
IRACP Norrrs

Difference
between Ind
AS L09 and

IRACP Norms

Grcss Carrying
Amount as per

Ind AS L09

Loss Allowances

{Prcvisions} as

required under
Ind AS L09

Net
Carrying
Amount

Asset Classification
as per RBI Nortrs

Asset
Classification as

per Ind AS L09

Per{onrrins Assets
48.40 0.29Stase 1 48.69 4.29Standard

Stage 2
48.40 0.2948.69 0.29Subtotal {A}

Non- Perfonnins Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage 3

Subtotal for sub-standard (B)

taqe 3Doubtful*uptol year
1 to 3 years Stage 3

25.50 25.50More than 3 years Stage 3 25.50
25.50 25.50 25.50Subtotal for doubtful (Bl

Loss {C} Stage 3

25.50 25.50 25.50Subtotal for NPA {D} = {B}+{C}

Stage 1

Stage 2

Other items such as guarantees,

loan commitments, etc. which are

in the scope of Ind AS 109 but not
covered under currr:nt Income
Reco gnition, Asset ClassificaLion
and Provisioning (IRACP) norrns

Stage 3

Subtotal

48.69 0.29 48.40 0.29Stase 1
Stase 2

25.50 25.50Stase 3 25.50
Total

Total 74.19 25.79 48.40 25.79

For N. K. Daga & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 3214938

FCA l.{ilesh Kumar Daga

Proprietor
tufembership No. 05930{

Place: Vadodara
Date: 30.07.2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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ORCHID SECURITIES LIMITED

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements

1(a) Corporate Infornnation

Orchid Securities Limited (the "Compary") is a public limited company domiciled in
India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act,1956. The shares
of the Company are listed on The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited and Metropolitan
Stock Exchange of India Limited. The Company is registered under section 45-IA of
The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 to commence/ carry on the business of a Non-
Banking Financial Institution. The registration details are as follows:

RBI 8.05.00111

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) L1 8 209W8 199 4PLC0 6 217 3

The registered office of the Company and the principal place of business is 36&
Bentinck Street, Kolkata -7A0069.

"The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 3Lst March,2020 were
approved for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors on 30th

luly,202A.'

ltb) Significant Accounting Policies

L.L Statement of compliance

Lr accordance with the noffication issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("th"
MCA"), the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (referred to as "Ind
AS") notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act,2013 ('the Act") read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, from 1st Aprif
2019 and the effective date of such transition is 1st April, 2018. Such transition has
been carried out from the erstwhile Accounting Standards noffied under the Act,
read with relevant rules issued thereunder and guidelines issued by the RBI
(collectively referred to as "the previous Indian GAAP").

Previous period numbers in the financial statements have been restated to Ind AS. In
accordance with Ind AS 101 - First time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standard+
the Company has presented a reconciliation from the previous Indian GAAP to Ind
AS of Other Equity as at 1st Aprif 2018 and 31st March, 2019 and of the Total
Comprehensive Income for the period ended 31st March 2019. Refer Note No. 1.13
for the details of first-time adoption exemptions availed by the Company and Note
I{o. 25 for Reconciliation of Equity and Total Comprehensive Income for numbers

I

qfiqdTn
T
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1,.2 Basis of Preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each

reporting period. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The preparation of financial statements require the use of certain significant
accounting estimates and assumptions that #fect the reported amounts of assets,

liabilities, revenues and expenses and disclosed amount of contingent liabilities.

Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas where
assumptions are significant to the Company are discussed in Note No. 1.15 -
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The management believes that the estimates used in preparation of financial
statements are prudent and reasonable. Actual results could differ from those
estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimates would be
recognised in the periods in which the results are known / materialised.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (IM) and all values are
rounded to the nearest Lakh, except otherwise indicated. Comparative information
has been restated to accord with changes in presentations made in the current y*tr,
except where otherwise stated.

Other significant accounting policies and details of significant accounting
assumptions and estimates are set out below in Note No. 1.3 to 1.16.

The financial statements of the Company are presented as per Schedule III (Division
Itr) to the Act applicable to Non-Banking Financial Companies (NBFCs), as notified
by the MCA.

L.3 Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Company, it can be reliably measured and it is reasonable to expect ultimate
collection.

Revenue from Operations is recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss on an
accrual basis as stated herein below:

a) Interest income from financial assets is recognised by applying the Effective
Interest Rate ('EIR') to the gross carrying amount of financial assets, other than
credit-impaired assets and those classified as me.rsured at Fair Value through
Profit or Loss (FVTPL) or Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
(FVTOCI). The basis of computation of EIR is discussed in Note No. 1.12.3.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows having
impact on EIR are recognised in interest income with the corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

b) Income or fair value changes for financial assets classified as

\
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c) Interest Income on credit impaired financial assets is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost (net of provision) of the
financial asset.

d) Revenue from trading in securities/intraday transactions is accounted for on
trade date basis.

e) Income from dividend is recognised when the Company's right to receive such
dividend is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the entity, the dividend does not represent a recovery
of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured
reliably.

1.4 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds including interest expense calculated using the effective
interest method.

Interest expense includes origination costs that are initially recognised as part of the
carrying value of the financial liability and amorttzed over the expected life using the
EIR. It also include expenses related to borrowing which are not part of effective
interest as not direct$ related to loan origination.

1.5 Employee Benefits

(A) Defined Contribution Plans:

Contribution as per the Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions
Act, 1952 towards Provident Fund and Pension Fund is not applicable to the
company.

(B) Defined Benefit Plans:

Gratuity in respect of all the employees are accounted for on cash basis.

(C) Short-term and other long-term employee benefits:

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of salaries in
the period in which related service is rendered.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

L.6 Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currenfly payable and deferred tax.

\

Current tax

Current Tax
far the year

amount of tax payable in respect af taxable profit
Act, 196L Taxable prafit differs from 'profit before



tax' as reported in the statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted at the reporting period.

MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period.
In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the
said asset is created by way of a credit to the statement of Profit and Loss and shown
as MAT credit entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet

date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent
there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay
normal income tax during the specified period.

Defered tax

The Company's deferred tax is calculated using tax rate that are substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assek are generally recognised for
a1l deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Cur:rent and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss, except

when they reLate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or

directly in equrty, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

1.7 Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment shown in the balance sheet consists of assets used in
the provision of services or for administrative purposes.

Initial and subsequent recognition
Property, plant and pment are initially recognised at cost together urith
borrowing cost qualifying assets" Cast comprises the purchase price
and any

ryo(&f,
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intended use
of bringing the asset to its working condition for its



Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and equipment are measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if *y.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that the future economic
benefim associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a

separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are

charged to the statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period in which they
are incurred.

De-recognition
An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of Profit and
Loss. The date of disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is the date the
recipient obtains control of that item in accordance with the requirements for
determining when a performance obligation is satisfied in hd AS 115.

Depreciation

Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. It is
recognised to write down the cost of assets less their residual values over their useful
lives, using the straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The Company has adopted the useful li:fe as specified in Schedule tr to the
Companies Act, 2013.

Depreciation on assets purchased / sold during the period is recognised on a pro-
rata basis.

1.8 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of
its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is uny indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
hr assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time and the risks specific to the asset for w'hich the estimates

\
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If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in the statement of Profit and Loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or
a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or cash generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss.

1..9 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event it is probable that the Company will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. If the effect of the
time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax
rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When
discounting is used the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be
derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of
meeting its obligations under the contract. The provision is measured at the present
value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected
net cost of continuing with the contract.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected
to be recovered from a third prty,a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

In case of litigations, provision is recognised once it has been established that the
Company has a present obligation based on information available up to the date on
which the Company's financial statements are finalised and may in some cases entail
seeking expert advice in making the determination on whe*rer there is a present
obligation.

Contingent Liabilities
Contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
uncertain the cantrol of the Company or a present obligation
that is not it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be

\
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but discloses its existence in the financial statements

Contingent Assets
Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements, but are disclosed
where an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

L.1"{} Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash on hand, balances with banks, cheques on
hand, remittances in transit and short-term investments with an original maturity of
three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

L.LL $egment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Chief Operating Decision-Maker (CODM). The CODM assess the
financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic decisions.

The Company is predominantly engaged in a single reportable segment of 'Financing
and Dealing in Shares' as per hd AS 108 - Segment Reporting.

1"12 Financial Instruments

Classification of financial instruments
The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:
1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost
2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets' cash flows
and the Company's business model for managing financial assets which are explained
below:

Business model assessment
The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it
manages groups of financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis,
but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such'as:

that business model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management
persorurel.

the performaace of the husiness model (and the financial

rodEaf,

assets model) and the rAray th*se risks are managed



compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or on the
contractual cash flows collected).

the Company's assessment. The business model assessment is based on
reasonably expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 'stress case'

scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way
that is different from the Company's original expectations, the Company does

not change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that
business model but incorporates such information when assessing newly
originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) test
As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual terms
of financial assets to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

'Principal' for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at
initial recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if
there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/ discount).

In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows
are consistent with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration
for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin
that is consistent with a basic lending arr;rngement. Where the contractual terms
introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.
The Company classifies its financial liabilities at amortised costs unless it has

designated liabilities at fair value through the profit and loss account or is required to
measure liabilities at fair value through profit or loss such as derivative liabilities.

L.12Jl. Recognition of Financial Instruments:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when entity becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments. Loans & advances and all other regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on the trade
date basis.

1.12.2 Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments:
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs

directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through
Loss"

\

are recognised immediately in the statement of Profit and



1,.12.3 Sub sequent Measurement:

(A) Financial Assets

Financial Assets caruied at Amortised Cost:
These financial assets comprise bank balances, loans, trade receivables, other
receivables, investurents and other financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are

solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI):
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose

obiective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL):
A financial asset which is not classified as amortised cost or FVTOCI is measured at
FVTPL. A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that
meet the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if
such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising the
gains and losses on them on d.ifferentbases.
Any differences between the fair values of financial assets cLassified as FVTPL and held
by the Company on the balance sheet date is recognised in the statement of Profit and
Loss. In cases there is a net gain in the aggregate, ttrc same is recognised in "Net gains
on fair value changes" under Revenue from Operations and if there is a net loss the
same is recognised in "Net loss on fair value changes" under Expenses in the statement
of Profit and Loss.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:
The EIR is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The EIR is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability on initial recognition.

The EIR for financial assets or financial liability is computed:

4 By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating
the cash flows

fees and transaction costs that are

\
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Impairment of Financial Assets:
Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for financial assets measured at
amortised cost and FVTOCI at each reporting date based on evidence or information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial asset at an amount equal to
the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has

increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has

not increased significantly since initial recognitiorU the Company measures the loss

allowance for that financial asset at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

No Expected credit losses are recognised on equlty investments.

Derecognition of Financial Assets:
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash

flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.

On derecognition of a financial asset accounted under Ind AS 109 in its entirety:
a) For financial assets measured at amortised cost, the gain or loss is recognised in

the statement of Profit and Loss.
b) For financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income,

the cumulative fatr value adjusfinents previously taken to reserves are
reclassified to the statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset represents an
equtty invesbnent in which case the cumulative fair value adjustments
previously taken to reserves may be reclassified within equity.

If the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferred quakfies
for derecognition in its entirety, the previous carrying amount of the larger financial
asset shall be allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part
that is derecognised, on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of
the transfer.

If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred assef it recognises its retained
interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.

If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a

transferred financial asset, it continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a liability for the proceeds received.

Modificationy' revision in estimates of cash flows of financial assets:

When the contractual cash flows of a financial asset are renegotiated or otherwise
modified and the renegotiation or modification does not result in the derecognition of
that financial asset in accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company recalculates the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset and recognises a modification gain or loss in the

\
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(B)Financial Liabilities & Equtty Instruments
Classification as debt or equity:
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued are classified according to the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
Iiability and an equity instrument.

Equrty Instruments
An Equity Instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Company after deducting all of its liabilities. Repurchase of the Company's own
equity instruments is recognised and deducted direct$ in equrty. No gain or loss is
recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equlty instruments.

Financial Liabilities
The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised
cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such liabilities,
including derivatives that are liabilities, shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recogni.tion as at FVTPL. Financial liabilities are
classified as held for trading, if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109 -
" Financial Instruments".

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequent$
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method except for those designated in an
effective hedging relationship.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fee or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of Profit and Loss. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the EIR method.

Trade and other payables
A payable is classified as'trade payable' if it is in respect of the amount due on account
of goods purchased or services received in the normal course of business. These
amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to
the end of financial year, which are unpaid. They are recognised initially at their fair

\
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Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liabitity is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The

difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in the statement of Profit and Loss.

1.12.4 Off-setting of financial insfruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Balance

Sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously backed by past practice.

"1,.12.5 Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a

liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the
asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) Ln the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the

asset or liability.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimirng the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorised into Level 1.,2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the
fair value measurement in its entirety, which are as follows:

Level 1 financial instruments: Quoted prices (unadjusted) i" active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 financial instruments: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1

that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices). It includes fair value of the financial
instruments that are not traded in an active market and are determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on the company specific
estimated. If all ts required to fair value an instrument are observable,
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Level 3 financial instruments: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in level3.

1.12.6 Overview of the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) principles
Expected credit loss (ECL) is the probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e., the
present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected llfe of the financial instrument. A
cash shortfall is the difference between scheduled or conilactual cash flows and actual
expected cash flows. Consequent$, ECL subsumes both the amount and timing of
payments. It also incorporates available information which is relevant to the

assessment, including information about past events, current conditions and reasonable

and supportable information about future events and economic conditions at the
reporting date.

For portfolio of exposures, ECL is modelled as the product of the probability of default,
the loss given default and the exposure at default.

In case of assets identified to be significantly credit-impaired to the extent that default
has happened or seems to be a certainty rather than probability, ECL would be

determined by directly estimating the receipt of cash flows and timing thereof.

Staging:
The loan portfolio would be classified into three stage-wise buckets - Stage 1., Stage 2

and Stage 3 - corresponding to the contracts assessed as performing, under-performing
and non-performing, in accordance with the Ind-AS guidelines. The key parameter
used for stage-wise classification would be days past due (DPDs).

Stage 1: Ongoing exposures with DPD up to 30 days

Stage 2: Ongoing exposures with DPD between 6L and 90 days

Stage 3: Ongoing exposures with DPD of 91 days or more, and any other contracts
identified from time to time by the management.

Methodology:
The basis of the ECL calculations are outlined below which is intended to be more
forward-looking. Key elements of ECL are, as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time
horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the
facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

Exposure at Default (EAD) is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date,
taking into account expected changes in the exposure after the reporting date, including
repayments of principal and interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise,
expected drawdowns on committed facilities, and accrued interest from missed
payments.

Loss Given estimate *f the loss arising in the case where a default

\
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It isoccurs at a on the difference between the contractual cash flows



due and those that the lender would expect to receive, including from the realisation of
any collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

The key tenets of Company's ffiethodology are as under:

Past performance as basis for ECL discovery: Company's ECL methodology it based

on discovery of the relevant parameters - namely EAD, PD and LGD - from the

Company's actual performance of past portfolios.

Life Cycle Determination: A significant portion of the advances of the Company is
short-term in nature. Based on maturity pattern on the Company's advances in past

years, the average life rycle has been considered as 1year.

The management will continue to monitor the loan cases on an ongoing basis, and have

the discretion to make higher provisions on the basis expected recovery of the
individual accounts wherever considered necessary.

1.L3 First time adoption

These financial statements, for the year ended 31st Marctu 2020 arc the first financial
statements the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For periods up to
and including the year ended 31st March, 2019 the Company prepared its financial
statements in accordance with Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 (previous Indian GAAP).

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financial statements which comply with Ind
AS applicable for periods ending on 31st Marctu 2020 together with the comparative
period data as at and for the year ended 31st Marclu 2A19 as described in the summary
of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial statements, the
Company's opening balance sheet was prepared as at l"st Apttl, 2018 the Company's
date of ffansition to Ind AS. In preparing these Ind AS financial statements, the
Company has availed certain exemptions and exceptions in accordance with Ind AS
10L, as explained below:

Mandatory Exceptions

1..13.1. Estimates
The estimates at 1st Aprif 2018 and at 31st MarctU 2019 are consistent with those made
for the same dates in accordance with previous Indian GAAP (after adjustrnend to
reflect any differences in accounting policies). The estimates used by the Company to
present these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at Lst April 2018,
the date of transition to Ind AS and as at 31st Marctu 2019.

1.13.2 Classification and Measurement sf Financial Assets
Ind AS 101

assets on the
Ind AS.

to assess classification and measurement of financial

tqfie
and circumstances that existed at the date of transition to



Voluntary exemptions availed

1.13.3 Derecognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
As per Ind AS 101 - An entity shall apply the exception to the retrospective application
in case of "derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities" wherein a first-time
adopter shall apply the derecognition requirements in Ind AS 109 prospectively for
transactions occurring on or after the date of transition to Ind AS. For example, if a first-
time adopter derecognised non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial
liabilities in accordance with its previous GAAP as a result of a transaction that
occurred before the date of transition to Ind AS, it shall not recognise those assets and

liabilities in accordance with Ind AS (unless they qualify for recognition as a result of a
later tansaction or event). The Company has opted not to re-evaluate financial assets

derecognised in the past and to apply the derecognition requirements prospectively for
transactions occurring on or after the transition date.

1".13.4 Classification of Debt Instruments
The Company has determined the classification of debt instruments in terms of whether
they meet the amortised cost criteria based on the facts and circumstances that existed
as on the transition date.

1.13.5 Impairment of Financial Assets
The Company has applied the impairment requirements of Ind AS 1"09 retrospectively;
however, as permitted by Ind AS 101, it has used reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at
the date that financial instruments were initially recognized in order to compare it with
the credit risk at the transition date. Further, the Company has not undertaken an
exhaustive search for information when determining, at the date of transition to Ind AS,
whether there have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as

permitted by Ind AS 101.

1.1,4 Earnings per Share {'EPS')

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS
33 on Earnings per share. Basic Ef5 is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for
the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the
year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the
period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In computing the dilutive earnings
per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either reduces the

or

t
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earnings per share loss per share are included.



1".15 Significant accounting iudgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure

and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates

and underlying assumptions .re reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future
periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on the management's best

knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and

estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

L.1"5.L Impairment losses on loans and advances
The measurement of impairment losses requires judgement, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit
risk. These are based on the assumptions which are driven by a number of factors
resulting in future changes to the impairment allowance.

A collective assessment of impairment takes into account data from the loan portfolio
(such as credit quality, nature of assets underlying assets financed, levels of arrears,

credit utilization, loan to collateral ratios etc.), and the concentration of risk and
economic data (including levels of unemployment, country risk and performance of
different individual groups). These significant assumptions have been applied
consistently to all period presented.

The impairment loss on loans and advances is disclosed in more detail in Note No.
1,.12.6 Overview of ECL principles

1,.15.2 Business Model Assessment
Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI

and the business model test. The Company determines the business model at a level
that reflects how groups of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular
business objective. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their
maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are
consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is
part of the Company's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which
the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not
appropriate whether there has been a change in business model, if so, then it will be a
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prospective classification of those assets.



1.1"5.3 Provisions other than loan impairment
Provisions are held in respect of a range of future obligations such as employee
entitlements, litigation provisions, etc. Some of the provisions involve significant
judgement about the likely outcome of various events and estimated future cash flows.
The measurement of these provisions involves the exercise of management judgements
about the ultimate outcomes of the transactions.

1,.15.4 Fair Value measurement
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance

sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using various valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgment is required in establirhirg fair values. ]udgments include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about
these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

1.L5.5 EIR method
The Company's EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of
return that represenb the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected
behavioural life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different
interest rates at various stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle
(including prepayments and penalty interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected
behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India's base

rate and other fee income/expense that are integral pafts of the instrument.

1.15.6 Other estimates
These include contingent liabilities, useful lives of tangible etc

1.'1,6 Prelirninary Expenses

Preliminary Expenses is written off in accordance with Section 35D of the Income Tax
&ct,1961,.

L.17 Recent Amendments to Ind AS

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the
existing standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable
from 1"t April, 2AZA.


